MINUTES

Nebraska Environmental Trust Board Second Quarter Meeting May 4, 2023 1:00 p.m.

1. Call to Order

Chairman Quandahl called the second quarter meeting of the Nebraska Environmental Trust Board (NET) to order at 1:00 p.m. in LL Room 031 at 245 Fallbrook Blvd., Lincoln, Nebraska.

Advanced notice of the meeting and public hearing was published in the Lincoln Journal Star on April 22, 2023. The agenda and documents to be considered at the meeting were provided. The Open Meetings Act was posted near the meeting room entrance and on the Nebraska Environmental Trust (NET) website.

Roll call was conducted, and a quorum was present. Executive Director Elmshaeuser noted that the terms of three members of NET's 14-member Board have expired. The Board currently has 11 members. Six members are required for a quorum. A majority vote of those present and attending is required to take action.

Members Present (8):

District I: Mr. James Hellbusch, Columbus. **District II:** Chairman Mark Quandahl, Omaha; Mr. Felix Davidson, Valley. **District III:** Mr. Josh Andersen, Edgar.

State Agency Representatives: Vice Chairman Jim Macy, Director, Nebraska Department of Environment and Energy; Mr. Tim McCoy, Director, Nebraska Game & Parks Commission; Mr. Tom Riley, P.E., Director, Nebraska Department of Natural Resources; Ms. Sherry Vinton, Director, Nebraska Department of Agriculture.

Members Absent (3):

District I: Mr. Jeff Kanger, Lincoln. **District III:** Mr. Rod Christen, Steinauer. **State Agency Representative:** Ms. Charity Menefee, Director, Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services.

Staff Present:

Mr. Karl Elmshaeuser, Executive Director; Ms. Holly Adams, Grants Administrator; Ms. Madison Moe, Grants Assistant; and Ms. Sandra Weaver, Administrative Specialist.

2. Consent Agenda

Background on Consent Agenda Items

The consent agenda included the February 2, 2023, Board Meeting Minutes, financial reports, approval to set financials aside for audit, the Grant Disbursement Report, Nebraska Lottery Proceeds Allocation Report, and the Grant Administration Report.

Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Ms. Vinton, "I move to approve the consent agenda."

Voting Aye: Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

3. Public Comment

Mr. Bob Wickersham, Friends of the Nebraska Environmental Trust, expressed concern about the proposed amendments to the Board's policies and asked the Board to consider the public comments on the proposed rule changes to Title 137.

Mike Murphy, Middle Niobrara Natural Resources District, requested consideration of the NRD's modification requests for projects 20-104, 21-133, and 20-150-3 because of issues occurring causing undue delays.

David Rich, Nebraska Public Power District (NPPD), commented on the reasons for submitting an extension request for grant project 23-156.

4. UN-L Senior Design Team Update on Grants Portal Inspections

Background on Agenda Item 4

As a result of NET's state audits in 2021, the Board's Trust 22 Committee has been working with the Center for Operational Excellence (COE) to improve processes within NET's statutes, bylaws, rules and regulations, and policies. Grant monitoring was identified as a separate and significant project. Following the COE sessions, it was determined that the NET Grants Portal would provide a suitable platform for grant input, tracking, and notifications. An update project was contracted to Gregory Consulting, Inc. and the UN-L School of Computing Senior Design Capstone Program.

The UN-L Senior Design team presented the Grants Portal updates to the Board. The project is scheduled for completion by June 30, 2023. Contractual services from outside inspectors will be possible as of July 2023.

5. Board Development – Legislative informational reviews

Executive Director Elmshaeuser reminded the Board about the current requirements in the Open Meetings Act for agenda items and public comment.

If successful, LB 637, carried by Senator Albrecht, would require public comment at every meeting subject to the Open Meetings Act. Senator Hunt introduced AM 616 to amend LB 637 to state, "A body shall not limit public participation in any meeting at which citizens are allowed to speak." Senator Hunt later introduced AM 617, which adds, "unless a member or members of such public body are found or declared to be too tired to hear citizen testimony."

6. Title 137 Committee Report and Amendments to Title 137 for Consideration

Title 137 Committee Chair Andersen reported that the proposed changes represented a culmination of two years of effort inside and outside the Environmental Trust. The July 2021 Operational Assessment from the Department of Administrative Services identified multiple findings, including a lack of clarity and consistency in grant administration. The key areas were eligibility, rating, and ranking of the grant applications. Property tax concerns and implications from grant funding also needed to be addressed. In May of 2022, the NET Board created the Title 137 Committee to recommend procedures, policies, and alignment of Title 137 with state statutes. Public listening sessions were held in each congressional district in the state, and a remote session was held in Lincoln to take comments from the public. The comments were shared with the Title 137 Committee before deliberation began on proposed revisions to Title 137.

Motion by Mr. Macy, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to adopt the amendments to Title 137 as proposed, to authorize the Executive Director to sign the Certificate of Adoption, and forward the applicable and appropriate documents for processing as required."

Discussion: Mr. Davidson thanked the Committee for its work in the proposed Title 137 revisions. Mr. Hellbusch noted there was a lot of inconsistency in the past, and this was the first step to clarification. Both positive and negative comments were received. Mr. McCoy stated there was public concern about portions removed from the proposed rules, but many of these revisions removed duplication and inconsistencies with the statutes. He noted NET's rules and regulations will continue to evolve.

Voting Aye: Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

7. Public Hearing on Proposed Ranking Systems for Grant Applications

As presiding officer, Chairman Quandahl opened the public hearing at 1:33 p.m. to accept testimony on the proposed Project Ranking Systems for grant applications under consideration by the Nebraska Environmental Trust Board, pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat., Sections 81-15,167 through 81-15,176.

Hearing Testimony

Mr. Bob Wickersham, Friends of the Nebraska Environmental Trust (Friends), submitted a report containing comments on the proposed scoring criteria for the Project Ranking System prepared for the Friends by Teresa Wanser-Ernst, Ph.D. Mr. Wickersham outlined his concerns about the Project Ranking System scoring criteria.

Ms. Sandy Scofield, Friends of the Nebraska Environmental Trust, commented on the clarity of the proposed scoring criteria and the possibility of losing grant funds if not used.

Mike Murphy, Middle Niobrara Natural Resources District, commented on concerns with the proposed scoring criteria questions.

Shelly Kelly, Sandhills Task Force, commented on concerns with the proposed scoring criteria questions and the impact on smaller organizations.

Kristal Stoner, Audubon Nebraska, commented on the proposed scoring criteria and the impact on organizations.

The hearing concluded at 1:51 p.m.

8. Consideration of Project Ranking Systems for Grant Applications for Adoption

Background on Agenda Item 6

Pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 81-15,175 and Title 137, the Executive Director shall prepare Project Ranking Systems to rank all eligible applications. An affirmative vote of the Board approves the Project Ranking Systems after a public hearing.

Executive Director Elmshaeuser reminded the Board that Neb. Rev. Stat. § 81-15,175 (2) requires the Board to establish rating systems for ranking proposals that meet the environmental categories and other criteria and include the considerations listed in (a) through (g). The ten questions are based on statutory requirements. All of the questions are the same as last year except number 3. Last year, the criteria for the questions were based on six ratings: a. Does not meet criteria, b. Low, c. Below Average, d. Average, e. Above Average, and f. High. As a result of the listening sessions, feedback from grantees, and other sources, an attempt was made to help the Grant Committee members to differentiate between average and below average when reviewing grant applications.

Motion by Mr. Macy, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to approve the new Project Ranking Systems for Grant Applications using the 10-question format that follows Title 137 and allows up to five points per question as presented. The new Project Ranking Systems is to be effective as of July 1, 2023, pending the approval and posting of the amendments to Title 137 by the Nebraska Secretary of State."

Discussion: It was clarified that applicants would not be penalized if a 15-Day Notice was resolved and that direct environmental impact outcomes would not be required to be verified. Ms. Vinton noted the questions were an effort to quantify what had been subjective in the past but also pointed out that the counties in question 5 could vary significantly in size.

Voting Aye: Andersen, McCoy, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Quandahl Voting Nay: Riley Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 7 Voted Aye. 1 Voted Nay. Motion carried.

See Appendix A of the minutes for the Project Ranking Systems 10-question format document.

9. Grant application cycle 2023/2024

a. Point Allocation for Geographic Distribution

Points may be awarded to projects in specific areas if it becomes apparent that the area receives funding for proportionately fewer projects than other areas of the state. In the NET 2022 Annual Report, a map showed the geographic mix of project funding by county. Based on this information, it appears that additional points for specific geographical areas are not needed for the upcoming Grant Cycle.

Motion by Mr. Andersen, seconded by Mr. Hellbusch, "I move that the Board does not use additional points for specific geographical areas for the 2023/2024 grant cycle."

Discussion: Mr. Davidson noted geo points were not used last year after a review revealed the geographic mix was balanced.

Voting Aye: Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, Quandahl Abstaining: McCoy Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 7 Voted Aye. 1 Abstained. Motion carried.

b. Annual Priorities within Funding Categories

Pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. § 81-15,176, the Board may establish annual priorities within the fiveyear categories. If the NET Board wants to consider making it an annual priority, public meetings would need to be conducted in each of the three congressional districts. The NET Board may provide guidance for this activity for the 2024 Grant Cycle and would need to decide at the August 2023 meeting. The determination would occur after the grant applications for 2024 were opened. Sufficient notice needs to be given to applicants if the Board is considering a priority category.

Motion by Mr. Andersen, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move that the Board does not set priorities for the upcoming 2023/2024 grant cycle."

Discussion: Executive Director Elmshaeuser clarified this action is not about establishing funding categories but prioritizing them.

Voting Aye: McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

10. Grants Portal annual Grants Management System Service Agreement

The Board reviewed the proposed service agreement between the Nebraska Environmental Trust and Gregoire Consulting, Inc. for FY 2023-24 maintenance services for the Grants Management System. Pricing is based on a monthly service fee of \$2,400 for the 12-month duration of the agreement.

Motion by Mr. Davidson, seconded by Mr. Riley, "I move to approve the Grants Management System service agreement with Gregoire Consulting, Inc. and authorize the Executive Director to sign the contract in the amount of \$28,800.

Discussion: Mr. Davidson noted the grants portal was a powerful tool during his time on the Grants Committee. Ms. Adams stated the Portal is crucial for her job as the Grants Administrator. Updates are constantly being made to make the grants portal more user-friendly for staff and grant applicants. Executive Director Elmshaeuser reported the Trust hosts the software. Discussions have occurred about what a transition would look like in the future. The state's Office of the Chief Information Officer (OCIO) and the Game and Parks Commission assist with ensuring adequate security. The next planned internal project is to create another tab in the grants portal to allow public access. The update would allow the public to search for final reports of grants that occurred in the past. Mr. Riley thanked the staff for continuing to find ways to improve transparency and availability.

Voting Aye: Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

A meeting break was taken from 2:18 p.m. to 2:25 p.m.

11. Grant Modification Requests: 19-146-3, 20-103-3, 21-173, 23-156, 22-174, 20-174-3, 20-123-2, 20-139-3, 19-104-3, 20-153-3, 22-173, 20-175-3, 21-205-2, 20-189-3, 19-162-3, 20-127-3, 19-123-3, 20-104, 21-133, and 20-150-3

Motion by Ms. Vinton, seconded by Mr. Riley, "I move to approve Bazile Groundwater Management Area's request to move funds from the Travel Category into their Equipment/Monitoring, Project Assistant, and Advertising/Education Categories for project 19-146-3."

Discussion: None.

Voting Aye: Riley, Vinton, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Quandahl Abstaining: Macy Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 7 Voted Aye. 1 Abstained. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to approve Nebraska Academy of Sciences' request to extend project 20-103-3 for one year."

Discussion: Mr. Quandahl stated he would vote against the extension since the request was outside the grant's time frame, and another grant could be obtained.

Voting Aye: Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, McCoy, Riley Voting Nay: Andersen, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 6 Voted Aye. 2 Voted Nay. Motion carried.

Motion by Ms. Vinton, seconded by Mr. Riley, "I move to approve the Girl Scout's request to extend project 21-173 for one year."

Discussion: The Grants Administrator clarified that grantees are typically asked to request a sixmonth or one-year extension for accounting purposes. Mr. Macy suggested adding this topic to a future Board discussion.

Voting Aye: Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Hellbusch, seconded by Mr. McCoy, "I move to approve NPPD's request to extend project 23-156 for one year."

Discussion: Executive Director Elmshaeuser noted a contract had not been signed yet for the approved grant project. The grantee wished to extend the contract end date to resolve an unforeseen delivery issue. Mr. Hellbusch and Mr. Davidson agreed that supply chain issues remain problematic.

Voting Aye: Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Andersen, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to approve Nebraska Farm Bureau Foundation's request to extend project 22-174 for six months."

Discussion: Concern was expressed about whether the project could be completed in six months. Ms. Adams noted the grantee requested a six-month extension to allow the new middle school ag mag issues to be printed and promoted in September and mailed at the beginning of the school year. The extension would enable teachers to use the series of four readers for the entire year. Mr. Andersen noted he favored the modification because granting flexibility would result in a better return for the investment.

Voting Aye: Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Davidson, seconded by Mr. Riley, "I move to approve Beyond School Bells' request to extend project 20-174-3 for six months."

Discussion: Chairman Quandahl noted that based on past performance, he did not see evidence that the grantee could accomplish what was set out in the project using an extra six months.

Voting Aye: Davidson, McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy Voting Nay: Andersen, Hellbusch, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 5 Voted Aye. 3 Voted Nay. Motion carried. **Motion by** Ms. Vinton, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to approve UN-L's request to extend project 20-123-2 for one year."

Discussion: Mr. Davidson noted if successful, the project could benefit Nebraska's beef industry and air quality. Mr. Quandahl stated that he did not see anything in the letter that would lead him to believe the project would successfully get usable data.

Voting Aye: McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson Voting Nay: Andersen, Quandahi Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 6 Voted Aye. 2 Voted Nay. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to approve UN-L's request to extend project 20-139-3 for one year."

Discussion: Because of a 2020 university-wide hiring freeze, a project coordinator was not hired until 2021. Mr. Hellbusch noted he would vote no because it had already been two years.

Voting Aye: McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Davidson Voting Nay: Hellbusch, Andersen, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 5 Voted Aye. 3 Voted Nay. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Macy, seconded by Mr. Hellbusch, "I move to deny the Nebraska Pharmacists Association's request to extend project 19-104-3 for one year."

Discussion: Nebraska MEDS also received unanticipated grant funding from the Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) through federal funding. The funds from DHHS were utilized ahead of the funding from NET. The project has already received an extension.

Voting Aye: McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Macy, "I move to approve Northern Prairies Land Trust's request to extend project 20-153-3 for one year."

Discussion: None.

Voting Aye: Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. McCoy, "I move to approve the City of Lexington's request to extend project 22-173 for six months."

Discussion: None.

Voting Aye: Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. McCoy, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to approve Lewis and Clark NRD's request to extend project 20-175-3 for six months."

Discussion: Chairman Quandahl indicated he would vote no since COVID was used as the reason for delayed goals and tasks involving in-person interactions.

Voting Aye: Vinton, Hellbusch, Davidson, McCoy, Riley Voting Nay: Macy, Andersen, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 5 Voted Aye. 3 Voted Nay. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to approve the Bird Conservancy of the Rockies' request to extend project 21-205-2 for six months."

Discussion: In the last grant cycle, Bird Conservancy of the Rockies applied for a grant (23-151) to continue the bird banding in project 21-205-2. Because funding was not awarded for 23-151, the residual funds in 21-205-2 would be used to continue bird banding if an extension were granted.

Voting Aye: Riley Voting Nay: Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, Vinton, Quandahl Abstaining: McCoy Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 1 Voted Aye. 6 Voted Nay. 1 Abstained. Motion failed.

Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to approve UN-L's request to extend project 20-189-3 for one year."

Discussion: Chairman Quandahl noted he would be voting no since he did not see they could accomplish what was set out. Mr. Hellbusch pointed out that the reason for not completing interviews was travel restrictions, but platforms such as Zoom could have been used.

Voting Aye: Riley Voting Nay: Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Vinton, Macy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 1 Voted Aye. 7 Voted Nay. Motion failed.

Motion by Mr. Davidson, seconded by Mr. Andersen, "I move to deny UN-L's request to extend project 19-162-3 for one year."

Discussion: It was noted that the grant was issued four years ago.

Voting Aye: Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, Vinton, Macy, Quandahl Voting Nay: McCoy Abstaining: Riley Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 6 Voted Aye. 1 Voted Nay. 1 Abstained. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to approve the Nature Conservancy's request to extend project 20-127-3 for one year."

Discussion: Prescribed fires were limited in the last few years because of drought.

Voting Aye: Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to approve the Nature Conservancy's request to extend project 19-123-3 for one year."

Discussion: None.

Voting Aye: Riley, Davidson Voting Nay: Andersen, McCoy, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 2 Voted Aye. 6 Voted Nay. Motion failed.

Motion by Mr. Andersen, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to deny Middle Niobrara NRD's request to extend projects 20-104 and 21-133 for one year."

Discussion: A series of extensions for Middle Niobrara NRD projects were reviewed. A Board motion on December 7, 2021, approved a one-time extension of one year for project 20-104. It was noted that multiple grants are still open.

Voting Aye: Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, Quandahl Voting Nay: McCoy, Riley, Vinton Abstaining: Macy Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 4 Voted Aye. 3 voted Nay. 1 Abstained. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Andersen, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to deny Middle Niobrara NRD's request to extend project 20-150-3 for one year and to move \$215,915.23 from their Technical Assistance and Equipment categories into the Information and Education Category."

Discussion: The request includes items (the education and project coordinators and Heartland Scenic Studies) proposed in their 2023 Phase 2 application (23-120), which was not awarded. Phase 1 (20-150-3) has been completed.

Voting Aye: Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, Quandahl
Voting Nay: McCoy, Riley
Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee
6 Voted Aye. 2 Voted Nay. Motion carried.

12. Closeout Report of Grants

Background on Agenda Item 6

When a project contract reaches its end date, the grantee must submit a final report. NET staff reviews reports, disbursement requests, and balances of projects when the contract date ends. If a grant project breaches the contract, the executive director sends a written 15-day notice. Failure by the grantee to comply may result in a revocation of the grant. The staff creates a summary report for the Board to review the final status of each grant project before closing them in the Grants Portal.

Executive Director Elmshaeuser reported that some unfinished grant projects were included on the Closeout Report because responses were not received for notices or audits. Grant project 19-186-3 is included on the closeout list because an earlier request for an extension was denied, and the project was not completed. A final report for the project was not received, although it expired on

December 31, 2022. A reimbursement request for grant project 19-186-3 was emailed to NET on May 3, 2023. A final report was attached.

Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to approve the grant closeout report provided and presented by NET staff on May 4, 2023, except for 19-186-3, for the closeout of the projects presented in the report." **Discussion:** None.

Voting Aye: Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to accept the final report for 19-186-3, and not approve any additional funds for reimbursement."

Discussion: None.

Voting Aye: Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

13. Sale of property with conservation easement from Grant 09-134-3

Background on Agenda Item 13

The Nebraska Environmental Trust received a notification letter from an attorney representing the owner that a property with a conservation easement was planning to be sold. The conservation easement will remain in place with no modifications. The property/easement was acquired in part with grant funds provided by NET in Grant 09-134-3. Section 9. Notice of Approvals. 9.1 (b) and Section J. of the grant contract require the landowner to receive prior written permission from the NET before the sale of the property.

Motion by Mr. Andersen, seconded by Mr. McCoy, "I move to approve the transfer of the property in Grant 09-134-3."

Discussion: Mr. Riley verified that the motion authorized Executive Director Elmshaeuser to send a notification.

Voting Aye: Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Riley, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

14. Nebraska Environmental Trust Policy Amendments

Background on Agenda Item 14

As a result of process improvement meetings and the review of Title 137, additional policy items need updating. The proposed policy amendments listed below are a result of requirements already in statute, redundancy, discontinued or updated practices, grant portal updates, and clean-up.

a. Section II: Committees, C. Grants Committee, amend/delete

C: Grants Committee

Notice of all meetings of the Grants Committee will be published. Proposed Date: 11/14/2001 Legislative Program Evaluation Unit Adopted Date: 11/14/2001 Revised Date: 07/31/2003 Members of the Grants Committee who visit a site where an application is filed and under consideration for funding shall report on the visit to the Committee at the next meeting following the visit. Adopted Date: 04/03/2002

Records Policy:

1. Staff recommendations will be part of the grant file and provided to applicants upon request only.

2. Committee members will sign their score sheets so that they can be returned to them. Staff will record the individual scores and retain them, as well as the average score, in order to substantiate the average if questioned. Committee member abstentions will be recorded with each vote concerning a grant where a possible conflict of interest is noted.

3. Staff will retain working documents of the Committee for one year following issue of recommendations. Committee members will retain their own notes and voting records at their own discretion. Proposed Date: 11/01/2002 Grants Committee

Adopted Date: 11/01/2002

Policy on "Additional Funds" Available Prior to Grant Awards:

 1. The Grants Committee will have a "goal" not to carryover more than

 \$200,000 to the next grants cycle. The Committee will also strive to provide

 better lottery transfer projections and to avoid tie rankings.

 Proposed Date: 07/20/2007
 Grants Committee

 Adopted Date: 07/20/2007
 Board Action

Motion by Mr. Andersen, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to delete all of Section II: Committees, C. Grant Committee policies that are currently in place."

Discussion: Mr. McCoy noted that the policy change removes redundancy for what is already required in statute for every state board and commission. Mr. Riley noted it is easier to keep laws up to date, so these items are not at the policy level.

Voting Aye: Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

b. Section V: Grant Applications, A. Duplication of Grant Awards, amend

- A. <u>Duplication of Grant Awards with other agencies. NDEE*</u> To prevent duplication of grant awards by the Nebraska Environmental Trust and <u>other agencies the Nebraska Department of Environment & Energy</u>, Trust staff will:
 - 1. Provide a full list of applications submitted to the program following each application deadline to the other <u>agencies agency</u> for review.
 - 2. All Nebraska Environmental Trust recycling grants will be provided to the NDEE staff for technical review.
 - The rank order and draft recommended funding list will be provided to NDEE staff as soon as available for review.
 Proposed Date: Interagency Agreement Adopted Date: 07/20/1999

Motion by Mr. Davidson, seconded by Mr. Andersen, "I move to amend Section V: Grant Applications A. Duplication of Grant Awards as presented."

Discussion: Ms. Vinton verified that "agencies" in the policy included both code and non-code.

Voting Aye: Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

- c. Section V: Grant Applications, G. Public Notice of Applications Received and Rank Order List, amend/delete
 - G. <u>Public Notice of Applications Received and Rank Order List</u> After all grant applications for a given year have been received and processed, staff will post the summary report of applications on the Internet, issue a press release advising the public that the report is available.

Documents being considered at the Grants Committee or NET Board meetings are provided to the public as required by the Open Meetings Act.

Motion by Mr. Davidson, seconded by Mr. Hellbusch, "I move to amend Section V: Grant Applications G. Public Notice of Applications Received and Rank Order List as presented since that information can be provided through the Nebraska Open Meetings Act."

Discussion: None.

Voting Aye: Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

- d. Section V: Grant Applications, H. Comment Process on Grant Applications and Rank Order List, amend/delete
 - H. Comment Process on Grant Applications and Rank Order List

When the Grants Committee reports the results of its ranking process to the Chairperson, staff shall issue a press release of the rank order list. The list will be posted on the Internet and be made available via U.S. mail upon request. Written public comment will be accepted until one week prior to the vote to award. Any correspondence and other documents (not part of the application) will be forwarded to the full Board by November meeting or put in the February and/or April meeting 14 days prior to the board meetings. Materials not withstanding revisions or subsequent L of this section. Only materials submitted for hearing. All materials will not be made part of record for the public hearing. A public hearing will be scheduled for the meeting at which the Board votes to award grants. Proposed Date: 11/14/2001 Legislative Program Review Committee Adopted Date: 04/03/2002

Documents being considered at the Grants Committee or NET Board meetings are provided to the public as required by the Open Meetings Act.

Motion by Mr. Andersen, seconded by Mr. Hellbusch, "I move to amend Section V: Grant Applications H. Comment Process on Grant Applications and Rank Order List as presented since that information can be provided through the Nebraska Open Meetings Act." **Discussion:** None.

Voting Aye: Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

e. Section V: Grant Applications, I. Recognition Grant, amend/delete

I. Recognition Grant

The Board may approve a simplified application form to facilitate applications for grants of less than \$15,000. Proposed Date: 12/13/1994 Public Hearing Adopted Date: 02/07/1995

Motion by Mr. Andersen, seconded by Mr. McCoy, "I move to delete the Section V: Grant Applications I. Recognition Grant policy."

Discussion: None.

Voting Aye: Andersen, McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Quandahi Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

f. Section V: Grant Applications, J. Statement of Intent, amend

J. <u>Statement of Intent</u>

The Grants Committee may issue multi-year grant awards in total from funds on account or may issue statements of intent to fund projects for up to two years forward, pending available funds and satisfactory progress and compliance with grant conditions.

Second year statements of intent may not exceed 40% (25% new and 15% carried forward) of the total amount available to be awarded in a given year and third year intents may not exceed 15% of that total.

Proposed Date: 08/11/1997 Adopted Date: 08/12/1997 Revised Date: 04/03/2002

Motion by Mr. Andersen, seconded by Mr. Hellbusch, "I move delete the second paragraph of Section V: Grant Applications J. Statement of Intent as presented."

Discussion: None.

Voting Aye: McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

g. Section V: Grant Applications, L. Application Submission Requirements, amend

- L. Application Submission Requirements
 - 1. All essential components including partner letters must be submitted by the deadline, with the original application filing.
 - 2. The email version of the application and the paper version must be identical, with no material changes to the nature, scope or components of the project. Only electronic applications through the NET Grant Portal System will be accepted. Proposed Date: 04/17/2006 Adopted Date: 04/17/2006

Motion by Mr. Andersen, seconded by Mr. Hellbusch, "I move to delete the email and paper application versions of Section V: Grant Applications L. Application Submission Requirements as presented and only allow electronic grant applications through the NET Grant Portal System."

Discussion: Mr. Riley asked if the motion would meet the state's requirement for access. Staff will confirm whether there is an issue with only allowing electronic grant applications.

Voting Aye: McCoy, Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

h. Section VI: Grantee Conditions, F. Payment of Tax on Real Property, amend

Executive Director Elmshaeuser noted the amendment to Policy Section VI: F is contingent on the proposed changes in Title 137 successfully going through the regulation process to become law.

F. Payment of Tax on Real Property

The Nebraska Environmental Trust recognizes the importance of maintaining the property tax base to local communities. All government grantees are required to pay taxes or payments in-lieu of taxes in accordance with applicable state or federal laws on real property acquired with Trust funding. All private grantees, for-profit or non-profit, are required to pay property taxes on real property acquired with Trust funding in full in perpetuity.

Grants issued for the purpose of acquiring title to real property to a grantee(s) which does not have the statutory ability to pay property taxes shall be accompanied by a one-time payment to the county (ies) affected. The payment shall be 15 (fifteen) times the amount of the total property tax due in the last calendar year, less the levy amount which would have been due to the grantee(s).

Adopted Date: 10/27/1999 Ad-Hoc Committee on Property Tax Abatement Adopted Date: 11/09/1999 Revised Date: 04/07/2005

Motion by Mr. Riley, seconded by Mr. Davidson, "I move to delete the second paragraph of Section VI: Grantee Conditions, F. Payment on Tax on Real Property as presented with an effective date that coincides with the Secretary of State's posting of the approval of the amendments to Title 137."

Discussion: None.

Voting Aye: Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

i. Section IX: Trust Staff, B. Staff Supervision, amend

B. Staff Supervision

The Executive Director approves all routine activities for Trust staff. The Executive Director approves operating expenditures within the guidelines established by the Trust Board and within authority granted by the Nebraska Legislature. The Director of the Nebraska Game and Parks Commission approves routine activities for the Executive Director. Proposed Date: 12/27/2001 Legislative Program Evaluation Unit

Adopted Date: 02/13/2002

Motion by Mr. Andersen, seconded by Mr. McCoy, "I move to amend Section IX: Trust Staff, B. Staff Supervision as presented, removing the reference to the Director of the Nebraska Game and Parks Commission, to be in alignment with the state statute."

Discussion: None.

Voting Aye: Riley, Vinton, Macy, Hellbusch, Davidson, Andersen, McCoy, Quandahl Absent: Christen, Kanger, Menefee 8 Voted Aye. Motion carried.

15. Director's Report

Executive Director Elmshaeuser reported that 273 reimbursement requests were received for grant projects from July 1, 2022, through March 27, 2023. A total of 173 requests were rejected or withheld. Payments were withheld because of a shortage in a required match or because the reports were overdue, which would require more documentation. As a result of audits,15-day notices, and closeouts, the Trust is recapturing \$1,787,874.05 in funds. Grantees do not always use all or part of the funds awarded. Historically, funds coming back to the Trust have never been related back to the Governor's Office or appropriations side to offset the total appropriation for spending. During this fiscal year, \$5,628,360.75 additional revenue has been received with no offsetting appropriations. This amount is above the 20 million appropriated. This issue has been occurring over time, causing a significant increase in the cash fund.

Ms. Madison Moe was introduced to the Board. She filled the Grants Assistant vacancy in late February.

A picture of the Trust's new office building in Lincoln's Telegraph District was presented. A sign identifying the Nebraska Environmental Trust will be installed on the exterior. The move will be funded within existing appropriations and is anticipated to occur near the end of the fiscal year.

16. Next Meeting

Thursday, August 3, 2023, Location TBA, Lincoln, Nebraska, 1:30 p.m.

17. Adjourn

Chairman Quandahl adjourned the meeting at 4:19 p.m.

Karl L. Elmshaeuser Executive Director

APPENDIX A

Project Number:

Sponsor:

Project Name:

Scoring Criteria:

- 1. Does the project conform to the funding categories?
 - a. 0 Does not meet criteria Outside of scope
 - b. 1 Low Undefined project, just lists the category
 - c. 2 Below Average Lacks clarity of purpose
 - d. 3 Average Meets one category objective
 - e. 4 Above Average Two categories well defined
 - f. 5 High Three or more categories well defined
- 2. Does the project produce a commitment of funds from other funding sources?
 - a. 0 Does not provide any match
 - b. 1 Provides 5% 24% match
 - c. 2 Provides 25% 49% match
 - d. 3 Provides 50% 74% match
 - e. 4 Provides 75% 99% match
 - f. 5 Provides 100% match
- 3. Evaluation of performance looking back the last 3 grant cycles.
 - a. 0 Received a 15 Day Notice that was enforced
 - b. 1 Final Report was late
 - c. 2 Two Quarterly Reports were late
 - d. 3 New Applicant
 - e. 4 All Quarterly Reports and Final Report submitted on time
 - f. 5 All Reports submitted on time, no extensions or modifications requested
- 4. Does the project result in a public-private partnership?
 - a. 0 Not a requirement/Encouragement only
 - b. 1 Low Solo project
 - c. 2 Below Average One
 - d. 3 Average Two
 - e. 4 Above Average Three
 - f. 5 High Four or more
- 5. Does this project attain a geographic mix that provides funding for a diverse area?
 - a. 0 Does not meet criteria Majority of funding for project not used in NE
 - b. 1 Low One to two counties impacted
 - c. 2 Below Average Three to four counties impacted
 - d. 3 Average Five to six counties impacted
 - e. 4 Above Average Seven to eight counties impacted
 - f. 5 High Nine or more counties impacted

- 6. Is the project cost effective? (Formula: Operations/(NET Funds requested Administration))
 - a. 0 12% or higher
 - b. 1 10 to 11.99%
 - c. 2 7 to 9.99%
 - d. 3-4 to 6.99%
 - e. 4 2.01 to 3.99%
 - f. 5 0 to 2.00%
- 7. Does the project have economic impacts?
 - a. 0 Does not meet criteria No data provided
 - b. 1 Low Lack in clarity in project scope
 - c. 2 Below Average Generalization of goals to be accomplished
 - d. 3 Average Increases in opportunities or mitigation of hazards well defined
 - e. 4 Above Average Proposed measurements provided
 - f. 5 High Outcomes can be verified independently
- 8. Does the project produce direct environmental impacts?
 - a. 0 Does not meet criteria No data provided
 - b. 1 Low Lack of clarity in project scope
 - c. 2 Below Average Generalization of goals to be accomplished
 - d. 3 Average Direct environmental impacts are well defined
 - e. 4 Above Average Proposed measurements provided
 - f. 5 High Outcomes can be verified independently
- 9. Does the project produce long term environmental benefits for the general public?
 - a. 0 Not sustainable, less than one year
 - b. 1 One year
 - c. 2 Two years
 - d. 3 Three years
 - e. 4 Four to nine years
 - f. 5 Ten years or more
- 10. Does the project have a plan for evaluating the results of the expenditure of grant funds?
 - a. 0 No plan provided
 - b. 1 Tangible and/or intangible benefits provided
 - c. 2 Goals, objectives, and outcomes provided
 - d. 3 Baseline measurement, target, and improvement provided
 - e. 4 Measurable real time value provided
 - f. 5 Independent validation process of data provided